
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013                                                                               City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 22, 2013 City Council Joint Meeting with Black Diamond and Maple 

Valley Meeting; June 11, 2013 City Council Joint Meeting with Parks & Recreation 
Commission Minutes; and June 11, 2013 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  June 13 site visit. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  June 13 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation:  June 19 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  June 6 and June 20 meetings. 
• Future Meetings: Economic Development Council:  Next meeting June 27. 

 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
1. Consider Resolution Adopting 2014-2019 Transportation Improvement Program (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year (Slate) 
3. Update on Surface Water Management Programs (Vondran/Parrish) 
4. Briefing on Competitive Bidding (Hendrickson) 
5. Briefing on Utility Tax Effective Rate (Hendrickson)  
6. Discuss Council Requested Decision Cards (Matheson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION - Real Estate (RCW 42.30.110(1) (c)) 
  
ADJOURN  
 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 25, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 22, 2013 CITY COUNCIL JOINT MEETING 

WITH BLACK DIAMOND AND MAPLE VALLEY MINUTES; JUNE 11, 2013 
CITY COUNCIL JOINT MEETING WITH PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMISSION MINUTES; AND JUNE 11, 2013 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the May 22, 2013 City Council Joint Meeting 
with Black Diamond and Maple Valley Minutes; June 11, 2013 
City Council Joint Meeting with Parks & Recreation Commission 
Minutes; and June 11, 2013 City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 68



Unapproved Draft – May 22, 2013 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 
 

City of Black Diamond/City of Covington/City of Maple Valley 
Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, May 22, 2013 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Joint Meeting of the City Councils for the cities of Black Diamond, Covington and Maple 
Valley was called to order at Covington City Hall Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Covington, Washington, Wednesday, May 22, 2013, at 7:00 p.m., with Maple Valley Mayor Bill 
Allison presiding. 
 
BLACK DIAMOND COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Tamie Deady, Craig Goodwin, Ron Taylor, Janie Edelman, Mayor Pro Tem Carol Benson, and 
Mayor Rebecca Olness.  
 
BLACK DIAMOND STAFF PRESENT: 
Brenda Martinez, Assistant City Administrator/City Clerk; Jamey Kiblinger, Black Diamond 
Police Chief; Aaron Nix, Parks Director; and Mark Hoppen, City Administrator. 
 
COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Moon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey; Mayor Pro Tem Jeff 
Wagner; and Mayor Margaret Harto. 
 
COVINGTON STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Scott Thomas, Parks & 
Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Sean P. Kelly, Layne Barnes, Erin Weaver, Noel Gerken, Linda Johnson, Deputy Mayor Victoria 
Laise Jonas, and Mayor Bill Allison. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY STAFF PRESENT: 
David Johnston, City Manager; Sgt. Don Davis, Maple Valley Police; Greg Brown, Parks & Recreation 
Director; Steve Clark, Public Works Director; Shawn Hunstock, Finance Director; and Shaunna Lee-
Rice, City Clerk. 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 
Maple Valley Mayor Bill Allison called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS: 
Mayor Allison opened the Joint Meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Mayor Allison called for approval of the agenda. 

2 of 68



Unapproved Draft – May 22, 2013 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 
 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Weaver seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  20-0.  Motion carried. 
 
OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR ALLISON: 
Maple Valley Mayor Bill Allison welcomed all attendees and introduced King County 
Councilmember Reagan Dunn. 
 
ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION: 
1. King County Council Update from Councilmember Reagan Dunn. 
 
King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn provided an update on the following items:  
transportation funding; Metro bus service cutbacks; parks levy on August ballot; King County 
Emergency Medical Services levy on November ballot; King County Flood Control District’s 
Opportunity Fund authorizing a property tax levy; Sheriff’s Office re-opening a precinct in 
Southeast King County; protection of 43,000 acres of the White River Forest; and “donut hole” 
legislation signed by Governor Inslee allowing Maple Valley to annex the property. 
 
2.  Public Safety Collaboration. 
 
City of Maple Valley Sgt. Don Davis reported on collaborative efforts between Maple Valley, 
Covington, and Black Diamond in response to community needs which include:  DUI 
enforcement; speed patrols, Click-it-or-Ticket, and party patrols (emphasis patrols); event 
assistance; proactive investigations; joint training exercises (Tahoma lockdown drill); incident 
support with needed additional resources; detectives and undercover support among departments. 
 
There was discussion regarding city resources and the Reserve Officer Program. 
 
3.  Tri-City Trail Progress. 
 
City of Black Diamond Parks and Recreation Director Aaron Nix presented the PowerPoint with 
information on the history of the collaboration between the cities, including the regional trail 
work with King County.  Director Nix advised of the considerations for the trail collaboration as 
safety, public right-of-way and alignments, sensitive areas, physical or engineering constraints, 
and possible user conflicts. 
 
Kevin Brown, Director of the King County Parks Department, addressed the Feasibility Study 
conducted by King County in 2011-2012 to determine regional trail concepts.  Mr. Brown stated 
that King County is holding a Parks Levy vote on the August 6 ballot.  He also discussed the 
possible future development of the Green-to-Cedar Rivers Trail and the Covington Highlands 
Trail.  Mr. Brown discussed the preferred trail standards and the next steps which include right-
of-way acquisition and preliminary design phase. 
 
There was a brief discussion regarding the possible construction start dates.  King County hopes 
to complete the design phase and begin construction in late 2015 or possibly early 2016. 

3 of 68



Unapproved Draft – May 22, 2013 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 
 
 
4.  Update of Previous Initiatives. 
 
 a.  Transportation Collaboration. 
 
City of Black Diamond Mayor Olness handed out Southeast Area Transportation Solution 
(SEATS) coalition brochures discussing its history and its goals.  Mayor Olness spoke about the 
projects on SR 516.  She stated that Senator Mullet feels that if the transportation budget packet 
is passed by the Legislature, the projects for the communities could be funded.  She 
recommended that each Council pass a resolution from the cities to the Legislature asking for 
their support of the transportation budget packet. 
 
Mayor Olness advised of the Southeast Regional Shuttle Program provided by the Maple Valley 
Community Center and that funding has been reduced by $35,000.  Maple Valley Community 
Center Director Mark Pursley was present to answer questions regarding the reduction.  
Covington Councilmember Snoey advised the state operating budget must be passed before the 
state transportation budget.  Many legislators do not want to take more than one tax vote which 
would be detrimental to the transportation budget packet.  There was a brief discussion regarding 
Metro Transit route 168 from Kent to Maple Valley which is funded partially by a grant that 
expires in 2014. 
 
 b.  Animal Control Contract Expiration. 
 
Mayor Olness addressed this item discussing the work done in 2012 to determine what would be 
the options in 2013.  All three Councils opted to continue with the current animal control 
services agreement with King County.  She advised that the agreement with King County for 
animal control services is expiring in December 2015 and questioned whether the three cities 
should discuss future options tonight.  She also spoke about South County Cats services 
available to members of the animal control services agreement. 
 
Covington City Manager Derek Matheson advised that staff from all three cities would need to 
get King County to respond as to whether they are going to continue to subsidize the system and 
whether they are planning to replace the existing shelter within the next cycle.  Staff will work 
on these answers and meet with their respective Councils to determine the plan moving forward. 
 
Council Action:  There was consensus that each Council should discuss individually the 
options moving forward before deciding whether to look at other options as a group. 
 
 c.  City of Covington/Covington Water District Joint Staff Work Group 2011-12. 
 
Covington City Manager Derek Matheson addressed this item advising of the collaborative effort 
and the work involved.  Mr. Matheson gave the history and the outcome of the process that the 
Covington Water District staff will update standards for water mains in downtown Covington in 
their next comprehensive plan update.  They may address the deviation/variance concepts in the 

4 of 68



Unapproved Draft – May 22, 2013 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 
 
next standards update and continue to work together with City staff on economic development, 
affordable rates, and high quality public services. 
 
Covington Water District General Manager Gwen Maxfield was present to answer questions. 
 
Covington Mayor Pro Tem Wagner questioned whether the Comprehensive Plan updates had 
been started by Covington Water District.  Ms. Maxfield responded that the Comprehensive Plan 
update is due in 2014 and their staff is working on it now. 
 
COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS: 
Mayor Allison closed by thanking the City of Covington for hosting and thanked staff for all of 
the work they put into setting up this meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:38 p.m.  
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Covington Senior Deputy City Clerk   Covington City Clerk 
 
 
 

5 of 68



Unapproved Draft – June 11, 2013 Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 

Tuesday, June 11, 2013 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Parks & Recreation Commission was called to order in 
the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
June 11, 2013, at 5:34 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza (arrived @ 6:40 p.m.), David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, 
Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Conni Elliott, Liz Fast, Troy McIntyre, Laura Morrissey, Steven Pand, and William Pand. 
 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
David Aldous. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, 
Finance Director; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the joint study session to order. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Parks Priority Advisory Committee (PPAC). 
2.  Progress on Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan Goals. 
 
Commission Chair Steven Pand began the discussion on this item and was joined by the rest of 
the commissioners in requesting specific directions from the Council on what next steps the 
commission should take in its work plan considering the lack of funds currently available. 
 
Mayor Harto indicated the Council was interested in what decisions the Parks & Recreation 
Commission wished the Council to make in the best interest of the community.  Mayor Harto 
further explained that the PPAC could put into practice the outreach to the community, inviting 
them to be part of a process and envisioned it would be a little longer than a focus group or a task 
force and would have some depth to it.  In addition, the PPAC would not be solely put together 
for the purpose of acquiring funds to spend on parks, but would be about developing and 
maintaining parks and finding what resource options are available that are sustainable way into 
the future. 
 

6 of 68



Unapproved Draft – June 11, 2013 Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson indicated that from a budget perspective, revenues have bottomed 
out and are on the rise again which means the city probably can sustain the current level.  Mr. 
Matheson observed that there is no evidence yet that the city can significantly grow or restore 
what it had.  Mr. Matheson recommended that perhaps a shift in thinking was needed to look at 
several ballot measures over the next 50 years with this first time around focused more 
operationally than project focused. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson stated he concurred with Mr. Matheson and recommended 
patience is needed to see a turnaround.  Mr. Hendrickson suggested a Parks Improvement 
Program similar to the Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
Council urged the Parks & Recreation Commission to continue with the vision and planning and 
to give Council recommendations for future actions. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

7 of 68



Unapproved Draft – June 11, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 11, 2013 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, June 11, 
2013, at 7:15 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin 
Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, 
Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Don Vondran, Senior City Engineer; 
Bill Feely, Jesse Dalton, John Gaudette, Maintenance Workers; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lucavish moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the Agenda as amended to include King County Metro presentation and special 
proclamation.  Vote:  5-2.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Chris O’Claire, King County Metro Strategic Planning and Analysis Supervisor, gave a 
presentation on Metro’s proposed service cuts. 

 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. O’Claire provided responses. 
 

• Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas accepted the Parks & Recreation Month 
Proclamation. 
 

• Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff accepted a proclamation in his honor naming 
June 12, 2013 to be Glenn Akramoff Day in the City of Covington and wishing him well 
as he takes on his new role as City Manager of the City of Normandy Park. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

8 of 68



Unapproved Draft – June 11, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 

 2 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  May 14, 2013 Joint Meeting with CEDC & Chamber Board; May 14, 2013 

Regular Meeting; and May 28, 2013 Special & Regular Meeting. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #29496—29551, in the Amount of $211,721.50, Dated May 28, 
2013; Vouchers #29552-29553, in the Amount of $55,106.41, Dated June 4, 2013; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001306023-1001306040 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $153,678.28, Dated June 7, 2013. 
 

C-3. Accept Covington Community Park Fencing Contract. 
 

C-4. Release of Stormwater Drainage Easement for Red Canoe Credit Union. 
 

C-5. Subsurface Tunnel Easement for Soos Creek Water and Sewer District. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the consent agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Public Testimony on Proposed 2014-2019 Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
Senior City Engineer Don Vondran gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
2.  Discuss Citizen Survey Results. 

 
Community Relations Coordinator Karla Slate introduced this item and provided background 
information.  Consultant Stuart Elway gave the presentation on the 2013 survey results. 
 
Council provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Elway provided responses. 
 
3.  Finalize Use of Funds from General Fund. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve staff recommendations for use of general fund revenues made available by the 
passing of the Transportation Benefit District sales tax increase, and to authorize the TBD 

9 of 68



Unapproved Draft – June 11, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 

 3 

Board to include information in the TBD sales tax ballot measure on the city’s anticipated 
use of freed general funds.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Code Revisions for Assuming Solid Waste Jurisdiction Ordinance. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 04-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON UPDATING 
AND AMENDING CHAPTER 8.15 OF THE COVINGTON 
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO SOLID WASTE 
SERVICES. 

 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Ordinance No. 04-13 updating and amending CMC 8.15 relating to solid waste 
services.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  Town Center Developer Partnerships Request for Qualifications. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Matheson provided 
responses. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
authorize staff to proceed with a Town Center Request for Qualifications.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner and Councilmember Lucavish announced they would not be able to 
attend the June 25, 2013 City Council meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, spoke on utility tax and offered list of 
cities that, in his opinion, were taxing the correct amount. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:52 p.m. 
 

10 of 68



Unapproved Draft – June 11, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 25, 2013 
 

 4 

Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

11 of 68



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 25, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #29554—29619, in the Amount of $1,705,811.03, Dated June 
11, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001340464-1001340480 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1001340580-101340580 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$160,105.62, Dated June 21 2013. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #29554—29619, in the Amount 
of $1,705,811.03, Dated June 11, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1001340464-1001340480 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001340580-
101340580 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$160,105.62, Dated June 21 2013. 
 
 

 

12 of 68



13 of 68



14 of 68



15 of 68



16 of 68



17 of 68



18 of 68



19 of 68



20 of 68



21 of 68



22 of 68



23 of 68



24 of 68



25 of 68



26 of 68



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 25, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PROPOSED SIX-YEAR 2014 – 

2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Interim Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, Interim Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The city is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of that Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of Transportation 
by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation (street) capital 
improvement program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington Six-Year TIP 
2014 – 2019 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
A Public Hearing for the proposed 2014 – 2019 Six-Year TIP was held before the City Council 
on June 11, 2013. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Direct Staff to modify the proposed 2014 – 2019 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the draft Six-Year TIP 2014 – 2019.  
The specific revenue source(s) for the city portion of the funds for each project is determined 
each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these projects.  
Possible sources are grants, appropriations and traffic impact fees. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution            Motion        Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass a Resolution adopting the City of Covington Six-Year (2014 - 
2019) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

27 of 68



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A SIX-
YEAR (2014 – 2019) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM AND DIRECTING THE SAME TO BE FILED 
WITH THE STATE SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION 
AND TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 35.77 and 47.26 RCW, the City 

Council of the City of Covington has previously adopted a Comprehensive Plan including a 

Capital Facilities Element, and thereafter periodically modified said Capital Improvement 

Program (the “Program”) by resolution; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the work accomplished under the Program, 

determined current and future City street needs, and based upon these findings has prepared a 

Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the ensuing six (6) calendar years; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Program on June 11, 2013; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Program Adopted.  The Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 

for the City of Covington, as revised and extended for the ensuing six (6) calendar years (2014 – 

2019, inclusive), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 

reference, which Program sets forth the project location, type of improvement and the estimated 

cost thereof, is hereby adopted and approved. 

Section 2. Filing of Program.  Pursuant to Chapter 35.77 RCW, the City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to file a copy of this resolution forthwith, together with the 

Exhibit attached hereto, with the Secretary of Transportation and a copy with the Transportation 

Improvement Board for the State of Washington. 

ATTACHMENT 1

28 of 68



 

 
 

Section 3.   Effective Date.  In order to coincide with the State Environmental 

Policy Act (SEPA) timeline, the Plan identified as Exhibit “A” and adopted in Section 1 

shall take effect on July 5, 2013. 

 

PASSED in open and regular session on this 25th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Mayor Margaret Harto 
Attested: 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

29 of 68



EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION NO. 13-04

30 of 68



31 of 68



32 of 68



33 of 68



34 of 68



SR
 18

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

RA
MP

180TH AVE SE

164TH AVE SE

SE WAX RD

SE
 24

0T
H 

ST

156TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

204TH AVE SE

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

168TH PL SE

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

170TH PL SE

160TH AVE SE

173RD AVE SE

SE
 27

9T
H P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H ST

197TH PL SE

172ND AVE SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
PL

199TH PL SE

TIMBERLANE WAY SE191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

5T
H ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

SE
 27

7T
H 

PL

FR
ONTA

GE R
D

210TH AVE SE

172ND PL SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
ST

170TH AVE SE

152ND AVE SE

SE
 24

6T
H 

ST

169TH PL SE

196TH AVE SE

177TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H S

T

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H S

T

SE 26
8TH ST

185TH PL SE

186TH PL SE

151ST PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

TIMBERLANE DR SE

184TH AVE SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

183RD AVE SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

SE
 24

7T
H 

ST

199TH AVE SE

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

179TH PL SE

201ST AVE SE

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

170TH WAY SE

176TH PL SE SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

175TH AVE SE

166TH AVE SE

159TH AVE SE

153RD AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

183RD PL SE

171ST PL SE

195TH PL SE

192ND PL SE

163RD AVE SE

SE
 24

9T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

187TH AVE SE

SE 263RD PL

192ND AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

167TH AVE SE

195TH CT SE

178TH PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T P

L

211TH AVE SE

165TH PL SE

SE
 25

6T
H 

PL

189TH AVE SE

SE 25
8TH ST

175
TH PL S

E

159TH PL SE

181ST PL SE

186TH AVE SE

208TH AVE SE

185TH AVE SE

162ND AVE SE

184TH PL SE

197TH AVE SE

185
TH LOOP SE

174TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

168TH AVE SE

212TH AVE SE

196TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

SE
 24

5T
H 

PL

SE
 24

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

7T
H 

PL

SE
 TI

MBER
LA

NE BLV
D

SE
 24

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

202ND AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T P

L

193RD AVE SE

190TH PL SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

206TH AVE SE

155TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

169TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

CT

SE
 28

0T
H 

PL

SE
 27

5T
H 

ST

SE
 26

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

5T
H 

PLSE
 25

1S
T P

L

183RD CT SE

201ST PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T C

T

SE 258TH PL

186TH CT SE

198TH AVE SE

209TH AVE SE

162ND PL SE

SE
 24

1S
T S

T

174TH AVE SE

163RD PL SE

158TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

CT

SE
 25

5T
H 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

CT

193RD CT SE

187TH CT SE

198TH CT SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

171ST PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

SE
 25

5T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

SE
 W

AX R
D

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SR
 18

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

160TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

163RD AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

191ST PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

168TH PL SE

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

200TH AVE SE

166TH AVE SE

185TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST
SE

 26
0T

H 
ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

184TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

195TH PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

192ND AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

180TH AVE SE

170TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

166TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

16
8T

H A
VE

 SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

188TH AVE SE
189TH AVE SE

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

168TH PL SE

193RD PL SE

203RD AVE SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE 256TH ST SE
 25

8T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H ST

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

200TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

167TH PL SE

RA
MP

176TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

211TH AVE SE

196TH AVE SE

209TH AVE SE

175TH AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

RAMP

167TH PL SE

183RD AVE SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

Pipe Lake

11
24

11
28

11
27

10
63

11
49

10
56

10
57

10
28

10
14

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

Th
is 

ma
p i

s i
nt

en
de

d f
or

 pl
an

nin
g p

ur
po

se
s o

nly
. 

Inf
or

ma
tio

n w
as

 co
mp

ile
d f

ro
m 

th
e m

os
t a

cc
ur

ate
 

so
ur

ce
s g

en
er

all
y a

va
ila

ble
.

Dr
aft

 6-
Ye

ar 
Tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

jec
ts 

20
14

-20
19

 

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n

Cr
ea

ted
 By

: S
ha

wn
 Bu

ck
 05

/20
/20

13

.

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

To
wn

 C
en

ter
St

ud
y A

rea

ATTACHMENT 2

35 of 68



A
D

O
P

T
E

D
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 b
y 

R
E

S
O

LU
T

IO
N

 _
__

__
   

1
2

3
4

5
6

T
ot

al
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
P

rio
rit

y
C

ity
 C

IP
 #

, P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e,
  T

er
m

in
i, 

 M
aj

or
 C

la
ss

 o
f W

or
k

P
ha

se
F

un
de

d
F

un
ds

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

1
11

27
,

D
gn

X
X

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
R

 5
16

) 
R

-o
-W

X
X

1,
19

4
1,

19
4

 
 

 
 

 
Je

nk
in

s 
C

re
ek

 to
 1

85
th

 P
la

ce
 S

E
 

C
on

st
11

,7
85

 
11

,7
85

 
 

 
 

W
id

en
 to

 5
 la

ne
s 

&
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
, S

id
ew

al
ks

, N
ew

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
12

,9
79

1,
19

4
11

,7
85

0
0

0
0

2
10

28
,

D
gn

X
X

70
S

E
 2

40
th

 S
tr

ee
t, 

19
6t

h 
A

ve
 S

E
  a

nd
 S

E
 W

ax
 R

oa
d

R
-o

-W
N

/A

S
E

 2
40

th
 (

18
0t

h 
- 

19
6t

h)
, 1

96
th

 (
24

0t
h 

- 
W

ax
) 

&
 S

E
 W

ax
 (

19
3r

d 
- 

19
6t

h)
 

C
on

st
X

X
40

3
O

ve
rla

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
ro

ad
w

ay
s

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

47
3

3
10

29
,

D
gn

X
X

31
C

ity
w

id
e 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

S
af

et
y 

P
ro

je
ct

R
-o

-W
N

/A

10
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ci
ty

 (
se

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

fo
r 

de
ta

ils
)

C
on

st
X

X
21

9
21

9
V

ar
io

us
 s

ig
ni

ng
, s

tr
ip

in
g 

an
d 

ch
an

ne
liz

at
io

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

25
0

21
9

4
10

57
,

D
gn

X
X

40
40

 
 

 
 

 
15

6t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

R
-o

-W
0

0
 

 
 

 
 

V
ic

in
ity

 S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t t
o 

V
ic

in
ity

 S
E

 2
61

st
 P

la
ce

C
on

st
X

X
34

0
34

0
 

 
 

 
 

P
av

em
en

t R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
38

0
38

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
10

14
,

D
gn

78
78

Je
nk

in
s 

C
re

ek
 P

ar
k

R
-o

-W
10

10
S

E
 2

67
th

 P
la

ce
 to

 S
E

 2
68

th
 S

tr
ee

t
C

on
st

46
6

46
6

N
on

 M
ot

or
iz

ed
 M

ul
ti-

us
e 

tr
ai

l a
nd

 b
rid

ge
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

55
4

88
46

6
6

P
la

nn
in

g 
Le

ve
l S

tu
dy

P
la

nn
in

g
50

50
T

ow
n 

C
en

te
r 

E
co

no
m

ic
 Im

pa
ct

 &
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 C
os

t S
tu

dy

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

50
50

7
11

28
,

D
gn

1,
30

4
 

1,
30

4
 

 
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
R

 5
16

)
R

-o
-W

74
7

 
 

74
7

 
 

 
18

5t
h 

P
la

ce
 S

E
 to

 1
92

nd
 A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
C

on
st

13
,8

70
 

 
 

13
,8

70
 

 
W

id
en

 to
 5

 la
ne

s 
&

 r
ec

on
st

ru
ct

, S
id

ew
al

ks
, N

ew
 s

ig
na

l.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
15

,9
21

0
1,

30
4

74
7

13
,8

70
0

0
8

11
24

,
D

gn
1,

03
5

 
 

 
1,

03
5

 
 

18
5t

h 
P

la
ce

 S
E

 E
xt

en
si

on
R

-o
-W

4,
88

6
 

 
 

 
4,

88
6

 
W

ax
 R

oa
d/

18
0t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
 R

ou
nd

ab
ou

t t
o 

S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t
C

on
st

10
,9

50
 

 
 

 
 

10
,9

50
N

ew
 R

ou
te

, N
ew

 A
lig

nm
en

t, 
A

cc
es

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
16

,8
71

0
0

0
1,

03
5

4,
88

6
10

,9
50

9
10

63
,

D
gn

97
9

 
 

 
97

9
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
ta

te
 R

ou
te

 5
16

)
R

-o
-W

1,
39

8
 

 
 

 
1,

39
8

 
16

0t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

 to
 1

64
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

C
on

st
10

,3
40

 
 

 
 

 
10

,3
40

S
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

dd
 tu

rn
 la

ne
s,

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
ro

ss
in

g.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
12

,7
17

0
0

0
97

9
1,

39
8

10
,3

40
10

P
or

tio
ns

 o
f 1

05
6 

an
d 

11
49

D
gn

47
0

 
 

 
47

0
 

 
S

E
 2

56
th

 S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 1

80
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

R
-o

-W
22

8
 

 
 

 
22

8
 

S
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

,S
id

ew
al

ks
 

C
on

st
5,

01
1

 
 

 
 

 
5,

01
1

S
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

dd
 r

ig
ht

 tu
rn

 la
ne

.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
5,

70
9

0
0

0
47

0
22

8
5,

01
1

3.
0%

A
nn

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t I
nc

re
as

e
T

O
T

A
L

65
,9

04
1,

93
1

13
,5

55
74

7
16

,3
54

6,
51

2
26

,3
01

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

 T
ho

us
an

ds

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

O
V

IN
G

T
O

N
20

14
 t

o
 2

01
9 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

ATTACHMENT 3

36 of 68



 Agenda Item 2   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 25, 2013  
 
 
SUBJECT: DISCUSS SELECTION OF CITIZEN AND HONORARY CITIZEN OF THE 

YEAR. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
 
ATTACHMENT (S):    
1.  Nominations for Citizen of the Year [to be presented at the Council meeting]. 
2.  Nominations for Honorary Citizen of the Year [to be presented at the Council meeting].  
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator  
 
EXPLANATION:     
In years past, the City has recognized Citizens of the Year for their contributions to the 
community of Covington.  The person(s) selected will be honored by the City at the July 9 
Council Meeting and at the Covington Days Festival on July 20. Previous Citizens of the Year 
include:   
 

1998 Dianne Heide 
1999 Eric Doan, Larry Harto, Margaret Harto, and Dr. William H. Modglin, Jr. 
2000 Larry Clements and Sharon Clements 
2001 Gerry Crick and Don Henning 
2002 Mary Pritchard 
2003 Steve Delvo 
2004 Pat Sullivan 
2005 Rob MacDonald 
2006 Lloyd Evens 
2007 Kevin Holland and Meg Holland 
2008 Dave Lucavish  
2009 Barbara Grohe 
2010 Jean Young 
2011 George and Susan Pearson 
2012 Jeff Wagner 

 
The City has also recognized non-residents of Covington as Honorary Citizens of the Year for 
their contributions to the community. Previous Honorary Citizens of the Year Include: 
 

2001 Jim Ramseth and Pat Ramseth 
2002 Katie Pagenkopf 
2003 Bob Nelson 
2004 Shar Wagers and Greg Wingard 
2006 Sue Smith 

37 of 68



2007 Hugh Kodama 
2008 Sonia Foss 
2009 Daniel Key 
2010 Jim Schneider 
2011 Richard and Ina Balash 
2012 Leslie Hamada 

 
In 2013, as in years past, promotional materials were prepared and distributed to announce that 
the City was accepting nominations and nomination forms were available online and at City 
Hall.  Nominations were accepted from June 6 through June 24.     
 
ALTERNATIVES:    
A. Re-open nomination period.  
B. Review nominations submitted and make selection of 2013 Citizen and Honorary Citizen of 

the Year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance   _____Resolution        X  Motion           Other  

 
Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember _____________ 
seconds, to name _________________ as Covington’s Honorary Citizen of the 
Year for 2013. 
 
Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to name __________________ as Covington’s Citizen of the Year for 
2013. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager  
 
 

38 of 68



 
 

Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 25, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:   PRESENTATION ON SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS AND 

THE REISSUANCE OF THE WESTERN WASHINGTON PHASE II 
MUNICIPAL STORMWATER PERMIT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Interim Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. PowerPoint Presentation Documentation.  (TO BE PROVIDED AT MEETING) 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ben Parrish, Engineering Technician II 
 
EXPLANATION: 
February 15, 2012 marked the fifth year of implementation and the expiration of the City’s 
Western Washington Phase II Municipal Stormwater Permit.  Later that year the Department of 
Ecology reissued a new Stormwater Permit that will cover the City through 2018.  The reissued 
permit requires that the City maintain the compliance program required by the original permit 
but also adds new requirements and deadlines.  Ben Parrish will be updating the City Council on 
the new permit requirements and the compliance programs that will need to be implemented 
throughout the six year term of this permit.  
  
ALTERNATIVES: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution            Motion      X   Other 
 

Ask questions of staff. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 

39 of 68



 Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 25, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  BRIEFING ON COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
 
PREPARED BY:   Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 Don Vondran, Interim Public Works Director  
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 1. City Purchasing Policy 
  
EXPLANATION: 
One of the mainstays of government procurement is the open competitive bidding process. It 
provides transparency, accountability, value, and opportunity.  
 
In Covington’s case, competitive bidding has provided the opportunity to select qualified 
contractors who have completed projects on time and within budget. There have been some 
project bids that have come in over the engineer’s estimate. Those projects were delayed while 
the scope of the project was modified, additional revenue was received in terms of a grant or it 
was combined with another project in order to benefit from an economy of scale.   
 
The city is required by state law to bid out projects that meet certain thresholds. Those thresholds 
are determined by type of city, population, and category and project costs. Covington is a code 
city1

 
 with a population under 20,000. 

The following table summarizes what thresholds the city is required to adhere to: 
 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS and CHANGE ORDERS 
 

Amount Approval Authority Process 
Up to $7,500 Department Director Contract/P.O. 

$7,501 - $15,000 City Manager Contract/P.O. 
$15,001 - $30,000 (one trade) City Manager Contract/P.O. 

$30,001 - $45,000 
(multiple trades) 

City Manager Small Works 
Roster/Contract/P.O. 

$45,001 - $200,000  City Council Small Works Roster or 
Competitive Bid 

Over $200,000 City Council Competitive Bid 
 
                                                 
1 Code cities were created by the state legislature in order to grant the greatest degree of local control to 
municipalities possible under the state constitution and general law. This classification has been adopted by the 
majority of municipalities in Washington.  Code cities (shorthand for optional municipal code cities, as encoded by 
Title 35A RCW) are authorized to perform any function not specifically denied them in the state constitution or by 
state law. They may perform any function granted to any other city classification under Title 35 RCW. 

 

40 of 68



(Please see the attached purchasing policy which outlines in detail what the city requirements are 
as they relate to specific projects, services and materials.) 
 
Once the project has completed the design process (plan sheets and specifications) and the 
construction budget is approved then staff follows an established procedure. The procedure 
differs depending on the thresholds mentioned above.  The competitive bid process is the most 
detailed and is explained below.    
 
Public works staff develops a Request for Bids or Notice to Bidders that advertises when bids are 
due, what is required in the bid and how to get additional information.  Although there is a 
general template that we go by to advertise a project, each project is unique and requires 
coordination in terms of submittal requirements as well as staff and consultant (if applicable) 
scheduling for bid opening.  This typically takes a few days to a week to organize and 
coordinate.   
 
Once the advertisement is completed, staff makes a determination on where the notice should be 
placed. At a minimum the city is required to place the notice in the Covington Reporter, the 
city’s newspaper of record.  Generally, an advertisement is placed on the city’s website and 
based on the complexity and size of the project, staff may additionally opt to place the notice in 
the Daily Journal of Commerce. The typical lead time is one week to get a notice advertised in 
the paper.   
 
Placing the notice in a number of publications potentially gains more exposure for the city but it 
also costs more to advertise and coordinate.  That additional exposure does not always equate to 
more bids. The economy and marketplace, as well as the timing in the year have a lot to do with 
how many bids the city receives. Sometimes a lot of bid packages are requested but the number 
of final bidders is very low.  If the work is very specialized or has a significant amount of 
specialized work then that may eliminate general contractors because they can’t compete with 
the specialized contractors because they would have to subcontract too much of the work.  This 
portion of the bid process is typically the longest in duration.  The minimum time to advertise a 
project is two weeks and depending on the size of the project can be closer to 6 weeks in order 
allow a contractor to review the plans, request bids from subcontractors and assemble a complete 
bid package.    
 
At the bid opening, the city clerk reads the bids, makes sure that all requirements are met, and 
announces the potential winning bid. A log is kept of the bidders and their awards in compliance 
with the public records requirements. Once that step is complete, public works’ staff further 
reviews the bids to insure that all requirements are met before making the final award 
recommendation to council. Those steps would include verification of the contractor registration 
number and the unified business number (UBI#), industrial insurance coverage, employment 
security department number, state excise tax registration number, whether the contractor has 
been debarred, and other supplemental criteria as applicable. This typically takes a few days to a 
week to verify information, notify bidders and prepare for council.   
 
Council reviews the bid recommendation and votes on awarding the contract. Once the notice of 
the award is made, other items on the checklist include verification of insurance certificates and 
endorsements, submission of the performance and payment bond, the intent to pay prevailing 
wages, selecting the option for retainage, and signing the contract.  This typically takes a 

41 of 68



minimum of two weeks for the contractor to put together all the correct information in order to 
issue a notice to proceed.    
 
Although the example above primarily discussed the construction contract process, the 
consultant design and/or the request for qualification (RFQ) process is very similar.  
 
For projects between $30,001 and $200,000, the city typically utilizes the Small Works Roster. 
Established in 2008, and centrally located with the Municipal Research and Services Center 
(MRSC), the Small Works Roster gives the city access to a number of contractors who provide a 
wide variety of services for both public works projects and consultant services for architectural, 
engineering and other professional services. This database of contractors provides a number of 
advantages for the city such as, efficiency in government; cost sharing; access to a large pool of 
contractors; ease of electronic search and notification; and potentially lower bids as competition 
is increased.  
 
Managing a growing list of capital projects requires familiarity with the bidding climate, 
attention to detail, project knowledge, strong leadership and relationship skills, and a willingness 
to make tough decisions as needed.   
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   __X___Other 
 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Interim Public Works Director 
 
 

42 of 68



43 of 68

jmichaud
Typewritten Text

jmichaud
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



44 of 68



45 of 68



46 of 68



47 of 68



48 of 68



49 of 68



50 of 68



51 of 68



52 of 68



53 of 68



54 of 68



55 of 68



56 of 68



57 of 68



58 of 68



59 of 68



60 of 68



Agenda Item 5  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 25, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  BRIEFING ON UTILITY TAX EFFECTIVE RATE 
 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 1. Q&A from the Utilities and Transportation Commission 
  
EXPLANATION: 
A question has been raised by a citizen concerning the way utility companies pass along charges 
to their customers in order to collect utility tax.  

Per RCW 35.21.870, most cities in the state impose a utility tax on the gross income derived 
from the utility business not to exceed six percent (6%) on the following utilities: electricity, 
natural gas, telephone, or steam energy business. Other businesses such as cable television and 
solid waste are not restricted on how much may be charged.  

When a city chooses to implement a utility tax1

The Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission allows utility companies to reflect the 
rate of the city's utility tax based on the overall impact that the assessment of city utility tax 
creates. For example the state utility tax and state filing fee assessment are based on the same 
definition of "gross business income" as the city's utility tax, and therefore the utility must pay 
additional state tax on the city tax revenue. Even though the additional tax is paid to the state, the 
utility is allowed to show it as part of the city's utility tax calculation. (please see attachment 1 
for more detail) 

, it is charging the utility company directly on its 
gross revenues which are defined in the city’s ordinance (nominal rate). The utility company in 
turn may pass this charge on to its customers in order to recoup its costs (effective rate). In most 
cases, the utility taxes are levied on the gross operating revenues of the utility which include 
taxes owed by the utility and therefore the effective rate of the tax may be higher than the stated 
rate of 6% when you are comparing the utility tax charge strictly to the actual charge for service. 

RCW 82.15.050 offers deductions that may be included when computing the tax. Some cities 
such as Poulsbo2 have opted to make their deductions more restrictive by excluding “revenues 
derived from transactions in interstate or foreign commerce, or from business done for the 
United States and the state, or their officers or agents or any amounts paid by the taxpayer to the 
United States and the state, the city or to any political subdivision of the state, as excise taxes 
levied or imposed upon the sale or distribution of property or services, or as a utility tax.”3

                                                 
1 In the AWC 2010 Tax and User Fee Survey, 188 cities reported they impose a utility tax in Washington State. 

 

2 Other known cities who utilize this model include Edmonds, Lynnwood, Mukilteo, and Port Orchard. 

3 Poulsbo Municipal Code 3.36.060 

61 of 68



 
When the Covington City Council adopted a utility tax4

 

 in 2007, they adopted the model that the 
majority of cities in the state utilize. The nominal rate at inception was 5.5% on all utilities 
which included electric energy, natural or manufactured gas, solid waste, telephone, and cable 
television business within the City of Covington. Initial collections began on February 1, 2008. 

This was revised to include the city’s surface water utility in 2012.5 In addition, the nominal rate 
was increased to 6%.6

 
 

As part of the adopting ordinance the following definition of a utility’s gross revenues was 
included:  

(6) “Gross income” means the value proceeding or accruing from the performance of the 
particular business involved, including gross proceeds of sales, compensation for the rendition 
of services, and receipts (including all sums earned or charged, whether received or not) by 
reason of investment in the business engaged in (excluding rentals, receipts or proceeds from the 
use or sale of real property or any interest therein, and proceeds from the sale of notes, bonds, 
mortgages or other evidences of indebtedness, or stocks and the like), all without any deduction 
on account of the cost of property sold, the cost of materials used, labor costs, taxes, interest or 
discount paid, delivery costs or any expenses whatsoever, and without any deduction on account 
of losses. 

In summary, the city has opted to define gross revenues for utilities in the same way a majority 
of cities have across the state.  
 
Given staff research it appears that cities make the determination on which model works best for 
their respective cities and that both are correct.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
4 Ordinance 16-07 effective December 10, 2007. 

5 Ordinance 08-12 effective May 30, 2012. 

6 Ordinance 14-11 effective February 1, 2012. This additional revenue raised by the 0.5% is dedicated to park 
maintenance.  

62 of 68



FISCAL IMPACT:   
To estimate the fiscal impact if the city were change its nominal rate to account for the exclusion 
of state and federal taxes staff consulted MRSC. Judy Cox, finance consultant with MRSC, has 
devised a formula to explain how this would work. The following is her response: 
 
“Assume that a utility is charging rates that produce $100 of gross income a month and that its 
costs are $90.  The WUTC has approved the rate structure that gives the utility $10 profit. Now 
the city puts a six percent tax on gross income. After paying the tax, the utility has only $94 left 
and its profit falls to $4.  It goes to the WUTC, explaining that a tax has been put on and asks to 
raise its rates.  
 
“So how much should they raise rates?  At first glance, it would appear to be six percent to cover 
the tax.  But with a six percent increase, gross income would be $106, the tax due would be $106 
x .06 = $6.36 and after paying the tax, the utility has $99.64,  with its profit at $9.64 still lower 
than it was before the tax was levied.  To maintain its $100 income net of taxes and its $10 
profit, the utility must ask for a rate increase equal to (1/1-t)-1, where t is the city's tax rate.  In 
this case where t = 6 %, the required rate increase turns out to 6.38 percent and that rate is called 
the effective tax rate. 
 
“So if you wanted to have an effective rate of 6 percent, then you would have to lower your 
nominal rate to 5.66% and this would drop your revenues by 6 percent.”   
 
Applying that formula to the city in terms of dollars, it would translate to an annual 
revenue reduction of $128,408 (based on the 2013 forecast). 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   __X___Other 
 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney 
  

63 of 68



The following Q&A is from the Washington Utilities and Trade Commission website 
www.utc.wa.gov.  

City Taxes On Utility Bills 

June 2006 CA-505-2 

The city tax rate on my bill appears higher than the rate approved by the city government. 
Why is that? 

Many cities and towns in Washington impose a business and occupation tax on utilities doing 
business within its boundaries. These taxes are generally based on a percentage of revenues a 
utility collects from customers within the city or town. Local utility taxes levied in Washington 
are imposed directly on the utility, which is solely responsible for payment. Most natural gas, 
electric, and telephone utility companies in the state pass on these taxes to its customers. In 
addition to the actual tax rate, utilities also include a charge based on additional costs for billing 
and collection. This is why the bill shows the charge as the “effect” of city tax rather than, 
simply, city tax. 

It appears the utility is asking me to pay a tax on a tax. Is it legal to impose a tax on a tax? 
 
The “effect “of the city tax is not legally viewed as a tax on a tax. The city is taxing the utility 
company (business and occupation tax), not the individual customer. The amount shown on the 
bill as the "effect” of city tax is a tax on the company that the Washington Utilities and 
Transportation Commission (UTC) allows the utility to pass onto customers.  

Under state law, including UTC orders, utilities may impose an additional service charge to 
cover the cost of administering local or city taxes, e.g., billing and collection. One reason for this 
practice is so the UTC and customers can accurately determine what part of the local rates are 
due to local taxes. 

Customer bills also include a charge for federal excise taxes. The methods utilities use to 
calculate federal excise taxes are mandated by state and federal law. 
 
What is the legal basis for allowing utilities to charge for the increased "effect” of a tax? 

Since this charge is not a tax, but a part of a utility-service charge, it must be included in the tax 
base for federal excise tax purposes. Federal law requires that all charges included on the bill be 
included in the tax base. 

For example, the Internal Revenue Service has held that where a state or local taxing authority 
imposes a tax on the telephone company, rather than the customer, the effect of this tax may be 
passed on to the customer. The telephone company must include the tax in the federal excise tax 
base. This is true even though the “effect” of the tax may be shown as a separate item on the bill. 
Further, section 4251 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code imposes the federal excise tax on 
communications services. The tax applies to both local and toll service. This section requires the 

ATTACHMENT 1 

64 of 68



excise tax be paid by the person paying for the service – the telephone customer. Section 
4254(a)(1) of the Code further requires that the tax be based on the sum of all charges for 
services on the bill. A company may not deduct costs or expenses from the base amount. 

Has the Washington State Supreme Court upheld this practice?  

Yes. The UTC first approved the recovery of costs to collect local utility taxes in an order 
entered on October 9, 1947. (See Fifth Supplemental Order, Cause No. F.H. 7229). The 
Washington State Supreme Court upheld this decision. The court found that these taxes were 
imposed on the telephone company rather than the customer. (See State ex. Rel Seattle v. 
Department of Public Utilities, 33 Wn.2d 896, 207 P.2d 712 (1949)). 

Have the federal courts addressed this issue? 

Yes. Since these local taxes are imposed on the company rather than the customer, they represent 
costs of doing business. The “effect” of these costs is passed on as an additional service charge 
for the company's services. Under Internal Revenue Code Section 4251, the company is required 
to calculate the federal excise tax by including all charges as part of the federal tax base. Federal 
courts have upheld this requirement when addressing state and local taxes. See Rev. Rul. 77 -
472, 1977·2 CB 379; Rev. Rul. 73-184, 1973-1 CB 455; and Rev. Rul. 69-151, 1969-1 CB 288; 
see also State of Minnesota et. al. v. U.S., 75-2 USTC ¶ 16,204, 525 F.2d 231 (8th Cir. 1975); 
Agron v. Illinois Bell Telephone Co., 71-2 USTC ¶ 16,014, 449 F.2d 906 (7th Cir. 1971). 

 

65 of 68



Agenda Item 6  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 25, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  COUNCIL-REQUESTED DECISION CARDS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
PREPARED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Staff is about to begin the 2014 budget-preparation process.  This is an opportunity for the 
council to direct the preparation of any decision cards for consideration this fall. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion    X     Other 
 

Provide direction to staff. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director; City Attorney 
 

66 of 68



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: June 25, 2013  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

July 9, 2013 – City Council Special & Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67 of 68



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, July 9, 2013                                                                                  City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Economic Development Council applicants beginning at 6:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• 2013 Citizen of the Year Proclamation 
• 2013 Honorary Citizen of the Year Proclamation 

 
RECEPTION FOR CITIZEN AND HONORARY CITIZEN OF THE YEAR 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  June 25, 2013 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Covington Economic Development Council (Council) 
2. Discuss Northern Notch Advocacy (Hart) 
3. Report on City Credit Cards (Hendrickson) 
4. Discuss Commission Exit Interviews (Matheson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN  

Draft 
as of 6/20/13 

 

68 of 68

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	06-25-2013 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, June 25, 2013                                                                               City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item 1 Green Sheet 06-25-2013 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item 1 Attachment 1 05.22.13 Joint Mtg with BD & MV Minutes
	City of Black Diamond/City of Covington/City of Maple Valley
	Joint City Council Meeting Minutes
	Wednesday, May 22, 2013
	BLACK DIAMOND COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
	BLACK DIAMOND STAFF PRESENT:
	COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
	COVINGTON STAFF PRESENT:
	MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
	MAPLE VALLEY STAFF PRESENT:
	CALL MEETING TO ORDER:
	Maple Valley Mayor Bill Allison called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS:
	Mayor Allison opened the Joint Meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	Mayor Allison called for approval of the agenda.
	OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR ALLISON:
	Maple Valley Mayor Bill Allison welcomed all attendees and introduced King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn.
	ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION:
	1. King County Council Update from Councilmember Reagan Dunn.
	King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn provided an update on the following items:  transportation funding; Metro bus service cutbacks; parks levy on August ballot; King County Emergency Medical Services levy on November ballot; King County Flood Contro...
	2.  Public Safety Collaboration.
	City of Maple Valley Sgt. Don Davis reported on collaborative efforts between Maple Valley, Covington, and Black Diamond in response to community needs which include:  DUI enforcement; speed patrols, Click-it-or-Ticket, and party patrols (emphasis pat...
	There was discussion regarding city resources and the Reserve Officer Program.
	3.  Tri-City Trail Progress.
	City of Black Diamond Parks and Recreation Director Aaron Nix presented the PowerPoint with information on the history of the collaboration between the cities, including the regional trail work with King County.  Director Nix advised of the considerat...
	Kevin Brown, Director of the King County Parks Department, addressed the Feasibility Study conducted by King County in 2011-2012 to determine regional trail concepts.  Mr. Brown stated that King County is holding a Parks Levy vote on the August 6 ball...
	There was a brief discussion regarding the possible construction start dates.  King County hopes to complete the design phase and begin construction in late 2015 or possibly early 2016.
	4.  Update of Previous Initiatives.
	a.  Transportation Collaboration.
	City of Black Diamond Mayor Olness handed out Southeast Area Transportation Solution (SEATS) coalition brochures discussing its history and its goals.  Mayor Olness spoke about the projects on SR 516.  She stated that Senator Mullet feels that if the ...
	Mayor Olness advised of the Southeast Regional Shuttle Program provided by the Maple Valley Community Center and that funding has been reduced by $35,000.  Maple Valley Community Center Director Mark Pursley was present to answer questions regarding t...
	b.  Animal Control Contract Expiration.
	Mayor Olness addressed this item discussing the work done in 2012 to determine what would be the options in 2013.  All three Councils opted to continue with the current animal control services agreement with King County.  She advised that the agreemen...
	Covington City Manager Derek Matheson advised that staff from all three cities would need to get King County to respond as to whether they are going to continue to subsidize the system and whether they are planning to replace the existing shelter with...
	Council Action:  There was consensus that each Council should discuss individually the options moving forward before deciding whether to look at other options as a group.
	c.  City of Covington/Covington Water District Joint Staff Work Group 2011-12.
	Covington City Manager Derek Matheson addressed this item advising of the collaborative effort and the work involved.  Mr. Matheson gave the history and the outcome of the process that the Covington Water District staff will update standards for water...
	Covington Water District General Manager Gwen Maxfield was present to answer questions.
	Covington Mayor Pro Tem Wagner questioned whether the Comprehensive Plan updates had been started by Covington Water District.  Ms. Maxfield responded that the Comprehensive Plan update is due in 2014 and their staff is working on it now.
	COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS:
	Mayor Allison closed by thanking the City of Covington for hosting and thanked staff for all of the work they put into setting up this meeting.
	ADJOURNMENT:
	There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:38 p.m.

	Consent Item 1 Attachment 2 06.11.13 Special Joint Mtg w-P&R Commission
	Consent Item 1 Attachment 3 06.11.13 Regular Mtg Minutes
	Consent Item 2 Green Sheet 06-25-2013 Voucher Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item 2 Attachment 1
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 06-25-13 6 Yr TIP 2014-2019 Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 06-25-13 6 Yr TIP 2014-2019 Resolution
	PASSED in open and regular session on this 25th day of June, 2013.

	Item 1 Attachment 1 Exhibit A TIP 2014-2019 SEPA DNS
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Exhibit A Attachment 3 6 Yr TIP Summary Spreadsheet
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 6-25-13Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet 06-25-13 SWM Presentation Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 4 Blue Sheet 6-25-13 Competitive Bidding Discussion
	Agenda Item 4

	Item 4 Attachment 1 Res. 10-14
	Item 5 Blue Sheet with Attachment 1 6-25-13 Utility Tax Discussion
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 6 Blue Sheet 06-25-13 Council-Requested Decision Cards
	Agenda Item 6

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	07-09-2013 Special for Interviews & Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, July 9, 2013                                                                                  City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




